
AGENDA 
Middle Rogue Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Policy Committee 

 

 

 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE 
TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT RVCOG, 541-664-6674. 48 HOURS ADVANCE 
NOTICE IS PREFERABLE, AND WILL ENABLE US TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS 

1. Call to Order / Introductions / Review Agenda Chair 

Consent Agenda 

2. Review / Approve Minutes  Chair 

Attachment: #1 MRMPO Policy Meeting Draft Minutes 02/20/2025 

Public Hearing 
Chair will Read Public Hearing Procedures 

3. Amendment to the 2024-2027 TIP Ryan MacLaren 

Background: The Policy Committee is requested to consider the proposed 
amendments to the 2024-27 TIP. 

A. Add Project to TIP: Grants Pass Signal Upgrades (KN23863) 
B. Amend Project in TIP:  I-5: Evans Creek Bridge & Bridge over 

Depot St (Rogue River) (KN21775) 
 

The 21-day public comment period and public hearing was advertised 
on or before Friday, March 28, 2025, in the Rogue Valley Times, the 
Rogue River Press and the Grants Pass Courier and information is 
currently available on the MRMPO website. 

Attachments: #2 TIP Amendment Memo 
#3 CMR for KN21775 

Action Requested: Recommendation to Policy Committee 

Date: Thursday, April 17, 2025  
Join In-Person 
Location: Ridge Room Conference Room, 

Grants Pass City Hall, 101 NW A St, 
Grants Pass, OR  

Transit: Served by JCT Routes #10, 20, 35, 
40, 50, 80 and 100. Paratransit 
services are available for qualified 
individuals.  

Contact: RVCOG: 541-423-1375 

Time: 2:30 p.m. 
Or via Zoom 
Meeting ID: 845 5578 6528 
Phone #: +1 669 444 9171 
Zoom Link: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84555786528 

Website: www.mrmpo.org 
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84555786528
http://www.mrmpo.org/


AGENDA 
Middle Rogue Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Policy Committee 

 

Discussion Items 

4. Oregon Transportation Reinvestment Package (TRIP) 2025  Ryan MacLaren 

Background: Oregon Legislature’s Joint Committee on Transportation (JCT) have 
released a “starting point” for negotiations around a transportation 
funding bill. The Oregon Transportation Reinvestment Package (TRIP) 
seeks to raise about $2.2 billion per biennium (every two years) from a 
combination of increases to existing fees and taxes and new fees and 
taxes. 

Attachments: #4 Oregon Transportation Reinvestment Package (TRIP) Starting Point 

5. Public Comment Chair 

Regular Updates 

6. MRMPO Update Ryan MacLaren 

7. Other Business / Local Business Chair 

Opportunity for MRMPO member jurisdictions to talk about transportation planning projects 

8. Adjournment Chair 

 

All meetings are available in-person and online via Zoom unless otherwise noted. 

Scheduled Meetings   

MRMPO TAC May 1, 2025 1:30 p.m. 

MRMPO CAC May 8, 2025 1:30 p.m. 

MRMPO Policy Meeting May 15, 2025 2:30 p.m. 



SUMMARY MINUTES 
Middle Rogue Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Policy Committee 

 

Public Hearing 

 MRMPO Policy Committee Minutes – Thursday, March 27, 2025 
Agenda Packet Meeting Audio 

1. Call to Order at 2:04 P.M. / Introductions / Review Agenda 00:00 – 01:34 
  Quorum: 5 Members Present 
 

2. Review / Approve Minutes 01:34 – 02:00  
01:45  Rick Dyer moved to approve the February 20, 2025, MRMPO Policy Committee Meeting 

Minutes as presented. Seconded by Mike Baker.  
No further discussion.  
Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

3. 2025-2026 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 02:00 – 10:31 
Chair Pam VanArsdale opened the Public Hearing. 

  No public comments received. 
Chair Pam VanArsdale closed the Public Hearing. 

 
 

Date: Thursday, March 27, 2025 
Attendees:   

Voting Members Organization Phone Number 

Melia Biedscheid, Vice Chair Gold Hill 855-1525 

Kathleen Krohn Grants Pass 450-6000 

Bradley Clark Grants Pass 450-6000 

Pam VanArsdale, Chair Rogue River 660-4414 

Rick Dyer Jackson County 774-6117 

Mike Baker ODOT 957-3658 

Alternate Members Organization Phone Number 

   

Staff Organization Phone Number 

Ryan MacLaren RVCOG 423-1338 

Kelsey Sharp RVCOG 423-1375 

Interested Parties Organization  

Thomas Guevara  ODOT  

https://mrmpo.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/03/MRMPO-PolComm-Agenda-Packet-03-27-2025.pdf
https://mrmpo.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/MRMPO-PolComm-Meeting-Audio-03-27-2025.mp3


SUMMARY MINUTES 
Middle Rogue Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Policy Committee 

 

Regular Updates 

Discussion Items 

 

Action Items 

10:01  Rick Dyer moved to approve the 2025-2026 UPWP as presented. Seconded by Mike Baker.  
 No further discussion.   

Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

4. OMPOC Legislative Priorities 10:31 – 20:42, 20:51 – 22:43 
21:53  Rick Dyer moved to approve Chair Pam VanArsdale to speak on behalf of the MRMPO at the 

OMPOC Legislative Priorities Meeting. Seconded by Melia Biedscheid.  
 No further discussion.  

Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

5. Public Comment 20:42 – 20:51 
No comments received.  

6. MPO Planning Update 22:43 – 28:15 
Provided by Ryan MacLaren regarding the project solicitation of the next Transportation 
Improvement Program and changed to the State Capital Investment Plan.   

 
7. Other Business / Local Business 28:15 – 37:51 

Updates from Grants Pass and ODOT.    
 

8. Adjournment  
2:41 p.m.  

 

Scheduled Meetings   

MRMPO TAC April 3, 2025 1:30 p.m. 

MRMPO CAC April 10, 2025 1:30 p.m. 

MRMPO Policy Meeting April 17, 2025 2:30 p.m. 

 



Middle Rogue  
Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Regional Transportation Planning 

Gold Hill • Grants Pass • Rogue River • Jackson County • Josephine County • Oregon Department of Transportation 

MRMPO is staffed by Rogue Valley Council of Governments • 155 N. First St. • P O Box 3275 • Central Point OR  97502 • 664-6674 

DATE: March 28, 2025 
TO: MRMPO Policy Committee  
FROM: Ryan MacLaren, Planning Program Director 
SUBJECT:  TIP Amendment(s)  

The Policy Committee is being asked to consider approval of the following amendment(s) to the 2024-2027 Transportation 
Improvement Program. 
A press release for the 21-day public comment period and public hearing was sent on or before March 28th in the Rogue 
Valley Times, Rogue River Press, Grants Pass Daily Courier, and information is currently available on the MRMPO website. 
The TAC and CAC recommended approval. Information on the new project is enumerated below: 

A. Add Project to TIP:  Grants Pass Signal Upgrades (KN23863)
Description:   Add new project w/funds ($1M total cost) split from K23088. 3/13/25 OTC approval.

$ Source $ Source $ Source

Planning -$  -$  
23863 2025 Design 358,920$            CRP IIJA 41,080$            ODOT 400,000$  400,000$  
23863 2026 Land Purchase 107,676$            CRP IIJA 12,324$            ODOT 120,000$  120,000$  

Utility Relocate -$  -$  
23863 2027 Construction 430,704$            CRP IIJA 49,296$            ODOT 480,000$  480,000$  

Other -$  -$  
Total FFY24-27 897,300$            102,700$          1,000,000$  -$  1,000,000$  

Total All Sources

ODOT

Grants Pass Signal 
Upgrades

Upgrade advanced 
transportation 
controllers (ATC) and 
traff ic signal 
interconnect facilities 
at various locations 
around the city of 
Grants Pass.

n/a N/A

Project Name Project Description
RTP Project 

Number Air Quality Status Key # Federal Fiscal Year Phase
Federal Federal Required Match

Total Fed+Req Match
Other



 
 
Middle Rogue  
Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

Regional Transportation Planning 
 

 

Gold Hill • Grants Pass • Rogue River • Jackson County • Josephine County • Oregon Department of Transportation 

MRMPO is staffed by Rogue Valley Council of Governments • 155 N. First St. • P O Box 3275 • Central Point OR  97502 • 664-6674 

 
 

B. Amend Project in TIP:  I-5: Evans Creek Bridge & Bridge over Depot St (Rogue River) (KN21775) 
Description:   Cancel the Right of Way, Utility Relocation, and Construction phases. These phases will be delivered 
in the 2027-2030 STIP. 
 

$ Source $ Source $ Source

Planning -$                                -$                             
21775 2021 Design 1,383,300$         NHPP 116,700$          ODOT 1,500,000$                      1,500,000$                  
21775 2027 Land Purchase -$                                -$                             
21775 2027 Utility Relocate -$                                -$                             
21775 2027 Construction -$                                -$                             

Other -$                                -$                             
Total FFY24-27 1,383,300$         116,700$          1,500,000$                      -$                       1,500,000$                  

Federal Federal Required Match
Total Fed+Req Match

Other

Widen the Evans Creek 
Bridge to the west side 
(southbound lanes). 
Widen the bridge over 
Depot Street to the west 
side (southbound lanes). 
Remove portions of the 
bridge driving surfaces of 
both bridges and place 
new surface. Replace the 

n/a N/A

Project Name Project Description
RTP Project 

Number Air Quality Status Key # Federal Fiscal Year Phase Total All Sources

ODOT

I-5: Evans Creek 
Bridge & Bridge 
over Depot St 
(Rogue River)

 
 
 
 
 



Change Management Request

Request Date: CMR Number: Project Lead (TPM/RE-CP): 
Project Name: 

KN: Region: Area: Project 
Delivery Phase: 

Main Funding Program: 
Additional 

Funding 
Program(s): 

STIP Amendment: Approval 
Authority: 

MPO 
Amendment: 

IGA Amendment: A&E Contract 
Amendment: 

Re-baseline Schedule: 
Re-baseline Budget: 

Scope, Schedule & Budget 
Change - Reason(s): 

Current Scope: 

01/17/25 21775-P1 ROBERTS THOMAS D

No

Elective - Budget removed

I-5: Evans Creek Bridge & Bridge over Depot St (Rogue River)

No
No

Project InitiationROGUE VALLEY

YesFull

321775

Fix-It SW Bridge

OTC



Change Management Request

Describe Scope Change: 

Justification for Scope 
Change: 



Change Management Request

Describe the Risk of 
not Approving the 

Scope Change: 

Current Dates Proposed Dates Current Dates Proposed Dates 
PE EA Open – 008 PS&E Submittal – 551 

PDT Kick-Off – 018 Bid Opening – 560 
Project Initiation Phase 

Complete - 050 Forecasted 1st Note - 735 

DAP Phase Complete–325 Forecasted 2nd Note - 790 

ROW EA Open - 470 Forecasted 3rd Note - 796 



Change Management Request

Describe Schedule 
Change: 

Justification for 
Schedule Change: 



Change Management Request

Describe the Risk 
of not Approving 

the Schedule Change: 

Current Budget Requested Budget Change 
Planning 

Preliminary Engineering 
Right of Way 

Utility Relocation 
Construction 

Other 
Total: 

Describe Budget Change 
(Break down the change 

by Funding Program): 

$0 $0 $0
$1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0
$30,000.00 $0 -$30,000.00
$50,000.00 $0 -$50,000.00

$7,307,000.00 $0 -$7,307,000.00
$0 $0 $0

$1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0
ROW remove $30,000 FIX-IT SW Bridge
UR remove $50,000 FIX-IT SW Bridge
CON remove $7,307,000 FIX-IT SW BRIDGE



Change Management Request

Justification for Budget 
Change: 

Describe the Risk 
of not Approving 

the Budget Change: 

Signatures Dates Signatures Dates 
Funding Prg Manager: Additional Signator: 
STIP Coordinator: Additional Signator: 
Area Manager: Additional Signator: 
Project Sponsor: Additional Signator: 
Tech Center Manager: Additional Signator: 
Region Manager: Additional Signator: 
Additional Signator: Additional Signator: 

Jennifer Jackson
MARMON JERRY

Bert Hartman

Bridge program needs to have these funds returned to fund other projects in the Bridge
program.

Mark Thompson

Bridge program would not be funded as needed.



 

1 
 

Oregon TransportaƟon ReInvestment Package (TRIP) 2025 – 
StarƟng Point 
 

The below package stays true to Oregon’s values of a user-pay system and enhancing access through a 
mulƟmodal approach. Its creaƟon has spanned over two years: It was built by the public’s voice, heard 
throughout the 13 legislaƟve listening tour stops all over the state in the spring and summer of 2024, as 
well as by the advice of transportaƟon experts and advocates during the fall transportaƟon workgroups. 
All recommendaƟons are rooted in building and maintaining a safe, equitable, and environmentally 
responsible transportaƟon system.  

State Highway Fund: Our economy and quality of life depend on our ability to keep our roadways 
operaƟng daily. Without funding reform, Oregon will conƟnue to see a decline in the safety, reliability, 
and quality of its transportaƟon system. Though the below proposal is less than the requested amount in 
the Governor’s Requested Budget, the raised revenue will be essenƟal to maintaining safety across the 
state. 
 
Purpose 
 

 The vast majority of revenue raised (almost 90%) for the State Highway Fund will be dedicated 
to operaƟons, maintenance and preservaƟon efforts to ensure our roads remain safe and we 
maintain Oregon’s investment into its system. This includes paving priority routes, restoring 
bridges, restoring maintenance forces, road clearing, replacing culverts and storm faciliƟes, 
fixing road and pedestrian infrastructure, and other criƟcal safety investments like rumble strips, 
fixing unstable slopes, repairing signals and more. 
 

 The remaining revenue will go toward honoring previous project commitments in the last 
transportaƟon package. 

 

Revenue 

A projected total of $1.9 billion per biennium into the State Highway Fund  

 $1.5 billion per biennium through increases to existing revenue streams: 

o Fuels Tax:  +20¢/gallon with staggered implementaƟon 
 January 1, 2026:  +8¢/gallon 
 January 1, 2028:  +4¢/gallon 
 January 1, 2030:  +4¢/gallon 
 January 1, 2032:  +4¢/gallon 

o RegistraƟon: +$66 

o Title:  +$90 

o Weight-Mile: +16.9% 
 



 

2 
 

 $486 million per biennium through a one-Ɵme system use fee on all vehicles at Ɵme of 
purchase, at 1% of vehicle price. Oregon is one of five states that does not have this revenue 
stream (and of those five, one of only two states that does not have other non-standard fees and 
charges on vehicles at Ɵme of purchase). 

 
DistribuƟon 

 

 More than $1.7 billion per biennium (existing revenue stream increases and nearly half of the 
one-time system use fee) will follow the regular distribution method in the State Highway Fund 
of 50/30/20 – approximately $850 million to the state / $510 million to counties / $340 million 
to cities (per biennium) to ensure all levels of government can maintain the safety of their 
infrastructure and stability of their revenue streams. 

   

o Funding for programs that have a strong nexus to local government and local safety, like 
Great Streets and Safe Routes to School, are distributed outside of the 50/30/20 
formula.  

 The first $250 million per biennium of the one-Ɵme system use fee will go toward compleƟng 
prior commitments.  

 

Modern TransportaƟon Funding 

 Index Fuels Tax to Ɵe it to inflaƟon to ensure future solvency of the revenue stream. 

 Phase in a mandatory Road Usage Charge (RUC) for light vehicles. Vehicles could enroll with the 
RUC program or pay a flat RUC annual fee. Once enrolled, EVs would no longer pay higher 
registraƟon rates. Any generated revenue aŌer administraƟon costs will be available for formula 
distribuƟon in the State Highway Fund. Rollout Ɵmeline: 

o July 2026: ExisƟng EVs 

o July 2027: Newly purchased EVs 

o July 2028: Plug-In Hybrids 

o July 2029: New vehicles rated at 30 MPG or greater (starƟng with model year 2030). 

 Phase in mandatory Road Usage Charge for corporate delivery fleets. A business that operates 
at least 10 medium duty vehicles (10,001-26,000 pounds) to deliver packages to homes or 
businesses in Oregon would be required to enroll.  Mileage rates would be between the light and 
heavy mileage rates. Once enrolled, these medium duty vehicles would no longer pay higher 
registraƟon rates. Any generated revenue aŌer administraƟon costs will be available for formula 
distribuƟon in the State Highway Fund.  

 

Stewardship & Accountability 
 

 Restore Highway Cost AllocaƟon balance per the Oregon ConsƟtuƟon.  



 

3 
 

 Reclassify diesel as a motor vehicle fuel to reduce fuels tax evasion and help alleviate 
administraƟve burdens on small company fuel sellers and fuel users.  

 Simplify weight-mile rates to reduce weight-mile tax evasion and alleviate administraƟve 
burdens on trucking companies. 

 Ensure ODOT Accountability through a thorough review of ODOT’s exisƟng accounƟng, budget, 
and project delivery processes and pracƟces. The JCT is working on accountability and review of 
ODOT through a consultant that will deliver final results in May. 

Transit: As Oregon's population continues to age and grow, it becomes increasingly important to 
provide sustainable ways for all Oregonians to access their needs and their community, especially for 
the estimated one-third of residents who cannot or do not drive. Investing in a multimodal 
transportation system is an investment in lower emissions, safety for pedestrians, access for all citizens 
and businesses, and a healthy, thriving Oregon.  

 Maintain current transit service levels  

 Expand service areas and levels  

 Invest in Youth Pass expansion  

 Invest in rural transit developments  

 Expand Veteran Passes 

 Increase the payroll tax The current tax rate is one-tenth of one percent (0.1%). Increasing the 
payroll roll tax by 0.08% (for a total of 0.18%) will result in $ 268.6 million per biennium 

 

Rail:  Freight and passenger rail are instrumental in the state’s transportaƟon system to efficiently move 
freight to and from port and passengers up and down the I-5 area. Rail offers a great alternaƟve to 
congested highways, is the most environmentally responsible way to ship freight by land, and provides a 
much safer transportaƟon alternaƟve. 

 $17 million per biennium to maintain the new Amtrak service levels (including necessary 
upgraded equipment) and maintain if not enhance passenger rail experience and Ɵmetables. 

 Invest in safety through signals and crossing infrastructure where rail meets road. 

 Invest in more sidings to allow trains to pass each other so passenger trains run on Ɵme and 
freight trains are not held up. 

 Invest in track curvature improvements and bridge repair to increase safety and maintain train 
speeds. 

 Increase Vehicle Privilege Tax (currently 0.5% of vehicle price) by 0.3% (for a total tax of 0.8%) 
to further Connect Oregon goals of invesƟng in rail, aviaƟon, and marine projects. Revenue 
esƟmates are $44.8 million per biennium. 

 InsƟtute a Tire PolluƟon Tax at 3% of total Ɵre purchase. Revenue projecƟons are $50 million 
per biennium. 

 50% of revenue will go to Rail OperaƟons. 

 25% of revenue will go to Wildlife Crossings to help save the lives of drivers and wildlife. 



 

4 
 

 25% of revenue will go to Salmon RestoraƟon to negate the environmental impact of Ɵre 
polluƟon runoff into Oregon waterways. 

 

Off system bike and pedestrian faciliƟes:  More than 80 percent of Oregonians report using local trails. 
Trails create the safest places for people of all ages and abiliƟes to walk, bike, scoot, and skate. They also 
help communiƟes reduce miles in vehicles, and help the state meet climate goals as well as support local 
tourism economies.  Trails also increase access to nature, health, and wellness. 

 Invest in Oregon’s Community Paths program. 

 The current bike tax is $15 per bike with a sales price of $200 or more, collected at point of sale. 
An increase of $9.50 per bike (total $24.50) would increase revenue by about $1 million per 
biennium. 


	2025-03-27 MRMPO PolComm Agenda
	1. Call to Order / Introductions / Review Agenda
	2. Review / Approve Minutes
	3. Amendment to the 2024-2027 TIP
	4. Oregon Transportation Reinvestment Package (TRIP) 2025 
	5. Public Comment
	6. MRMPO Update
	7. Other Business / Local Business
	8. Adjournment

	03-27-2025 MRMPO PolComm Draft RVWD Minutes - Copy
	Memo_TIP_Amendment_03_27_25
	FROM:  Ryan MacLaren, Planning Program Director
	SUBJECT:   TIP Amendment(s)

	21775-CMR
	Oregon TRIP 2025



